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FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT – 1 

Michael D. Rounds (Nevada Bar No. 4734) 
Ryan Johnson (Nevada Bar No. 9070) 
WATSON ROUNDS 
777 North Rainbow Blvd., Suite 350 
Las Vegas, NV 89107 
Telephone: (702) 636-4902 
mrounds@watsonrounds.com 
rjohnson@watsonrounds.com 
 
Steve W. Berman (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
Andrew M. Volk (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
Hagens Berman Sobol Shapiro LLP 
1918 Eighth Avenue, Suite 3300 
Seattle, WA 98101 
Telephone: (206) 268-9320 
 
Nicholas S. Boebel (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
Hagens Berman Sobol Shapiro LLP 
5001 Chowen Ave. S., Suite 2000 
Minneapolis, MN 55410 
Telephone: (612) 435-8644 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff Integrated Technological Systems, Inc. 

 

 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  

DISTRICT OF NEVADA 
 
 

INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGICAL 
SYSTEMS, INC., 
 
 Plaintiff, 
 
 v. 
 
NETSPEND CORPORATION,  
 
 Defendant. 
 

  
 

Civil Action No. 2:11-cv-01625-GMN-GWF 
  
 
FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT 
 
 
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 

Plaintiff Integrated Technological Systems, Inc. (“ITS”) for its First Amended Complaint 

against Defendant NetSpend Corporation (“NetSpend”) hereby states and alleges as follows: 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT – 2 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This is a civil action for patent infringement arising under the Acts of Congress 

relating to patents, including Title 35 United States Code § 1 et seq. 

2. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to at 

least Title 28 United States Code §§ 1331 and 1338(a). 

3. Upon information and belief, Defendant NetSpend has transacted business in this 

Judicial District and has committed and/or induced acts of Patent Infringement in this District. 

Venue with respect to Defendant NetSpend is proper within this district pursuant to Title 28 

United States Code §§ 1391(b) and (c) and 1400(b). 

4. Upon information and belief, personal jurisdiction over Defendant NetSpend 

comports with the United States Constitution and N.R.S. § 14.065 because the Defendant has 

systematic and continuous contacts with the State of Nevada, has purposefully availed itself of 

the privileges of conducting business in the State of Nevada, regularly conducts and solicits 

business within the State of Nevada, and ITS’s causes of action arise from Defendant’s business 

contacts and other activities in the State of Nevada. 

5. Upon information and belief, Defendant NetSpend is subject to this Court’s 

specific and general jurisdiction pursuant to due process and/or N.R.S. §14.065 at least as to its 

substantial business in this forum, including at least a portion of the infringements alleged herein, 

and regularly doing or soliciting business, engaging in other persistent courses of conduct, and/or 

deriving substantial revenue from products and services provided to individuals in Nevada.  

THE PARTIES 

6. Plaintiff ITS is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the state of 

Nevada with its primary place of business located at 9413 Greenham Circle, Las Vegas, NV, 

89117. 

7. Upon information and belief, Defendant NetSpend is a corporation organized and 

existing under the laws of the state of Delaware with its principal place of business located at 
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FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT – 3 

701 Brazos Street, Suite 1200, Austin, TX 78701-2582.  NetSpend Corporation may be served 

through its registered agent The Corporation Trust Company of Nevada at 311 South Division 

Street, Carson City, NV 89703. 

BACKGROUND OF THE PATENTED TECHNOLOGY 

8. Plaintiff ITS is the owner of U.S. Patent No. 7,912,786 (“‘786 patent”) entitled 

“Integrated Technology Money Transfer System.”  The United States Patent and Trademark 

Office duly and legally issued the ‘786 patent on March 22, 2011.  The ‘786 patent is assigned to 

ITS.  A copy of the ‘786 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

9. Plaintiff ITS is the owner of U.S. Patent No. 8,131,643 (“‘643 patent”) entitled 

“Integrated Technology Money Transfer System.”  The United States Patent and Trademark 

Office duly and legally issued the ‘643 patent on March 6, 2012.  The ‘643 patent is assigned to 

ITS.  A copy of the ‘643 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit B.  (Because the ‘643 patent 

contains a typographical error, a Certificate of Correction has been filed to correct the error.  A 

copy of the Certificate of Correction is attached hereto as Exhibit C.) 

9. Plaintiff ITS has the exclusive right to make, use, sell and offer to sell the 

inventions of the ‘786 and ‘643 patents, and has the right to sue and to recover damages for past, 

present, and future infringement of the claims of the ‘786 and ‘643 patents. 

10. The ‘786 and ‘643 patents relate generally to a method and system for transfers to 

and between debit card and other accounts.   

BACKGROUND OF NETSPEND’S INFRINGEMENT OF  

THE ‘786 AND ‘643 PATENTS 

11. Upon information and belief, Defendant NetSpend sells, offers for sale, 

distributes, and services General Purpose Renewable (GPR) prepaid debit cards.  The NetSpend 

Reload Pack debit account has been and continues to be used to transfer funds to NetSpend 

branded prepaid debit cards and, on information and belief, NetSpend co-branded GPR prepaid 

debit cards.  The NetSpend GPR prepaid debit cards have had, and continue to have, funds 
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FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT – 4 

transferred to them from NetSpend Reload Pack debit accounts and from other NetSpend GPR 

prepaid debit card accounts. 

12. Defendant NetSpend operates an operational and technology system that effects 

the transfer of funds among NetSpend GPR prepaid debit card accounts and, on information and 

belief, NetSpend co-branded cards, and from the NetSpend Reload Pack debit accounts to 

NetSpend GPR prepaid debit card accounts.  The NetSpend system practices the system and 

method claims of the ‘786 and ‘643 patents and represents an infringement either literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents.  NetSpend has been, and is now, infringing the '786 and ‘643 

patents in the State of Nevada, in this Judicial District and elsewhere in the United States and is 

liable to Plaintiff ITS for infringement of the ‘786 and ‘643 patents.   

COUNT I:  INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 7,912,786 

13. The allegations in all the paragraphs above are incorporated by reference into 

Plaintiff’s Count I as if fully set forth herein. 

14. Upon information and belief, Defendant NetSpend is infringing and/or has 

infringed one or more claims of the ‘786 patent-in-suit as a result of, among other activities, the 

making, using, selling, offering for sale, and providing products and/or services that utilize the 

system and method of the ‘786 patent to transfer funds from the NetSpend Reload Pack to 

NetSpend GPR cards and to transfer funds between NetSpend GPR cards in violation of 35 

U.S.C. § 271.  

15. Upon information and belief, Defendant NetSpend infringes, continues to 

infringe, and/or has infringed one or more claims of the ‘786 patent-in-suit either literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

16. Defendant NetSpend’s infringement of one or more claims of the ‘786 patent-in-

suit has injured Plaintiff ITS and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court. 
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FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT – 5 

COUNT II:  INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 8,131,643 

17. The allegations in all the paragraphs above are incorporated by reference into 

Plaintiff’s Count I as if fully set forth herein. 

18. Upon information and belief, Defendant NetSpend is infringing and/or has 

infringed one or more claims of the ‘643 patent-in-suit as a result of, among other activities, the 

making, using, selling, offering for sale, and providing products and/or services that utilize the 

system and method of the ‘643 patent to transfer funds from the NetSpend Reload Pack to 

NetSpend GPR cards and to transfer funds between NetSpend GPR cards in violation of 35 

U.S.C. § 271.  

19. Upon information and belief, Defendant NetSpend infringes, continues to 

infringe, and/or has infringed one or more claims of the ‘643 patent-in-suit either literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

20. Defendant NetSpend’s infringement of one or more claims of the ‘643 patent-in-

suit has injured Plaintiff ITS and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff ITS prays for relief as follows: 

A. For judgment in favor of Plaintiff that, either literally or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, the Defendant, directly, jointly, and/or indirectly by way of inducing and/or 

contributing to infringement, has infringed one or more claims of the ‘786 and ‘643 patents; 

B. For a permanent injunction prohibiting the Defendant NetSpend and its respective 

agents, servants, officers, directors, employees and all persons acting in concert with it, directly 

or indirectly, from infringing claims of the ‘786 and ‘643 patents, or from contributing to or 

inducing others to infringe the claims of the ‘786 and ‘643 patents; 

C. For an award of damages, requiring Defendant NetSpend to pay Plaintiff its 

damages adequate to compensate it for the infringement of the ‘786 and ‘643 patents together 
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FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT – 6 

with costs, expenses and prejudgment and post-judgment interest, for Defendant’s infringement 

of the ‘786 and ‘643 patents as provided under 35 U.S.C. § 284;   

D. For a post-judgment equitable accounting of damages to be ordered for the period 

of infringement of the ‘786 and ‘643 patents following the period of damages established by 

Plaintiff ITS at trial; 

E. For a judgment and Order granting Plaintiff its reasonable attorneys’ fees under 

35 U.S.C. § 285 to the extent that this Court finds this case exceptional; and 

F. For such other and further relief to which Plaintiff may show itself to be entitled 

and which this Court deems just and equitable. 

JURY DEMAND 

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 38, Plaintiff ITS demands a trial by jury on 

all triable issues. 

 
Dated:  March 12, 2012     
 

Michael D. Rounds (Nevada Bar No. 4734) 
Ryan Johnson (Nevada Bar No. 9070) 
WATSON ROUNDS 
777 North Rainbow Blvd., Suite 350 
Las Vegas, NV 89107 
Telephone: (702) 636-4902 
mrounds@watsonrounds.com 
rjohnson@watsonrounds.com 
 
Of Counsel: 
 

       /s/ Steve W. Berman    
Steve W. Berman (pro hac vice) 
Andrew M. Volk (pro hac vice) 
Hagens Berman Sobol Shapiro LLP 
1918 Eighth Avenue, Suite 3300 
Seattle, WA 98101 
Telephone: (206) 268-9320 
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FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT – 7 

Nicholas S. Boebel (pro hac vice ) 
Hagens Berman Sobol Shapiro LLP 
5001 Chowen Ave. S., Ste 2000 
Minneapolis, MN 55410 
Telephone: (612) 435-8644 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff Integrated Technological 
Systems, Inc. 
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